

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-20

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 11 OF THE CITY CODE UPDATING THE
CODIFIED FEE SCHEDULE APPENDIX A FOR FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE**

The City Council of the City of Bloomington, Minnesota does hereby ordain:

Section 1. That Chapter 11 of the City Code is amended by deleting those words struck through and contained in brackets [] and by adding those words that are underlined, to read as follows:

**CHAPTER 11: WATER, WASTEWATER, SOLID WASTE AND REFUSE UTILITY
SERVICES**

* * *

ARTICLE I: WATER

* * *

§ 11.02 SERVICE CHARGES.

(a) *Curb box connection permit.* A permit shall be obtained to connect to existing water service leads at the curb box. The fee for each such permit shall be ~~[as detailed in Article VI of this chapter]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Permit Fees for Water Connections table. No permit shall be issued except to a licensed installer.

* * *

(c) *Water disconnection and reconnection.* Whenever the city dispatches city staff to disconnect or reconnect water service to a property pursuant to this Article I of city code or pursuant to the request of the property owner, a service fee ~~[in the amount not less than \$50 per task]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A, or the service fee established by the City Council by resolution for each task, shall be charged to the account. However, no charge will be imposed for attempts to disconnect or reconnect water service during normal business hours that are unsuccessful due to causes the city determines to be beyond the control of the property owner. The rate for reconnection of disconnected water service outside of normal business hours shall be two and one- half times the normal rate.

* * *

§ 11.04 PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS FOR SERVICE INSTALLATIONS.

(a) *Fees for curb box connection permits and water main tapping.* The fee for permit for curb box connections and the charge for water main tapping shall be paid for each connection in the amount set forth ~~[as detailed in Article IV of this chapter]~~ in City Code Appendix A – Permit Fees for Water Connections table. Before any permit shall be issued, there shall also be paid any sum required as set forth in subsections (b) and (c) below.

* * *

§ 11.06 WATER RATES.

(a) *Rates.* The rates due and payable to the city by each owner within the city for water taken from the water supply system shall be ~~[as detailed in Article VI of this chapter]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table.

* * *

(d) *Water bills.* Water bills shall be mailed to the owner of the property or the owner’s duly authorized property manager at the designated billing address and shall specify the water consumed and the charge in accordance with the rates set forth in ~~[Article VI of this Chapter]~~ City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table. Owners must pay the total amount set forth in the bill on or before the due date listed on the bill. Failure to make payment by the due date listed on the bill will result in a late fee assessment of 5% of the total amount due and owing. Water bills for residential owners are bi-monthly. Water bills for multi-family residential and industrial and commercial owners are monthly.

* * *

§ 11.07 DELINQUENT WATER ACCOUNTS.

* * *

(f) *Assessment of delinquent accounts.* All delinquent accounts shall be certified to the City Assessor who shall prepare an assessment roll each year providing for assessment of the delinquent amounts against the respective properties served. The assessment shall include the amount of the delinquent account and the administrative charge ~~[due under Article VI of this chapter]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A, together with interest thereon at the maximum lawful rate. This assessment roll shall be delivered to the City Council for adoption on or before October 1 of each year.

* * *

(h) *Deposit required.* The Utility Division, at any time and at its discretion, may require a security deposit when there is a previous past due balance owing on any city utility account or property held by that property owner, a history of delinquencies, notice that the property owner has filed for bankruptcy or a disconnection of water service due to non-payment. The ~~[minimum]~~ amount of the security deposit ~~[shall be \$50 with a maximum security deposit equal to the greater of two average consecutive city utility bills in the past 12 month period at the service address or \$250]~~ is listed in City Code Appendix A. However, if the property owner is unable to pay the ~~[maximum]~~ deposit and has a credit history demonstrating little risk of nonpayment, then the Utility Division may reduce the deposit to any reasonable amount ~~[not less than \$50]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A. The requirement of a security deposit shall be based solely on account history and not based upon source of income, residential location, employment tenure, nature of occupation, race, color, creed, sex, marital status, age, national origin or any other criteria which does not bear a reasonable relationship to the assurance of payment. The security deposit must be in the form of cash or cash equivalent. The Utility Division shall keep records of accounts from which deposits are collected, and the amounts, and the distribution, if any, of such deposits. Receipts shall be issued for the deposits. Interest shall be paid on deposits in the amount and manner set forth by M.S. § 325E.02, as it may be amended from time to time.

* * *

§ 11.14 REPAIR OF LEAKS.

It shall be the responsibility of the owner to maintain the service pipe from the curb box into the house or building. In case of failure upon the part of any owner to repair any leak occurring in the owner’s service pipe within 24 hours after verbal or written notice has been given the owner, the water will be disconnected and will not be turned on until the repair has been completed and the fee for restoration of disconnected service as detailed in [~~Article VI of this chapter~~] City Code Appendix A has been paid. When the waste of water is great, or when damage is likely to result from the leak, the water will be turned off if the repair is not proceeded with immediately upon the giving of such notice. Disconnections pursuant to this section are not subject to the procedures or limitations set forth in § 11.07 of this code.

* * *

§ 11.17 WATER METERS.

* * *

(d) Complaints regarding meter accuracy.

(1) When an owner or the owner’s duly authorized property manager makes a complaint that the bill for any past service period has been excessive, the Utility Division shall upon written request have such meter and remote reading device reread. If the owner remains dissatisfied and desires that the meter be tested, the owner or the owner’s duly authorized property manager shall make a deposit with the Utility Division as set forth in [~~Article VI of this chapter~~] City Code Appendix A – Charges for Testing Water Meters table, and the city will test the meter. The owner or the owner’s duly authorized property manager may be present when such test is made.

* * *

(4) Before making a test of any meter, the person requesting such test shall, at the time of filing the request with the Utility Division, make a deposit with the Utility Division of the amount charged for such test, as detailed in [~~Article VI of this chapter~~] City Code Appendix A - Charges for Testing Water Meters table.

* * *

§ 11.23 CRITICAL WATER DEFICIENCY.

* * *

(d) Penalties.

(1) For each instance of noncompliance with water usage restrictions imposed by this section, a charge listed in City Code Appendix A [~~of up to \$50~~] shall be assessed against the property on which the violation occurred and added to the water bill for such premises. The amount of the charge shall be specified by the Council in its resolution and the Mayor in his or her certification to the City Clerk.

* * *

ARTICLE II: WASTEWATER

* * *

§ 11.26 CONNECTION PERMITS AND DEADLINES.

(a) *Permit.* A permit shall be obtained to connect to the sewer at existing wyes, risers or service lines. The fee for such permit shall be ~~[as detailed in Article VI of this chapter]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Permit Fees for Sewer Connections table. No permit shall be issued except to a licensed installer. Additional charge for labor may apply.

* * *

§ 11.29 WASTEWATER RATES AND BILLING.

(a) *Monthly wastewater rates.* Rates and charges for wastewater service are set at monthly amounts, and shall be ~~[as detailed in Article VI of this chapter]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table.

* * *

(2) *Peak and non-peak for single-family residential.* Residential owners' usage of wastewater is calculated on a monthly basis and billed bi-monthly. To acknowledge that certain amounts of water do not enter the wastewater system during summer months, the city divides the year into peak and non-peak months for single-family residential as stated below.

(A) *Non-peak months.* Non-peak months are defined as the months from November to April. During this time residents pay the actual metered water usage times the rate ~~[stated in § 11.63 of this code]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table.

(B) *Peak months.* Peak months are defined as the months from May to October. During this time a resident's billable amount shall be determined based upon the owner's average use during non-peak months and defined below at winter usage. The winter usage is multiplied by the wastewater rate ~~[as stated in § 11.63 of this code]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table.

* * *

§ 11.30 DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS.

Payment due dates and late fee charges shall be in accordance with § 11.06(d) of this code. Accounts shall be considered delinquent when any portion of the balance due exceeds 30 days past due and no arrangement for payment has been agreed to by both the Utilities Division and the owner or the owner's duly authorized property manager. All delinquent accounts shall be certified to the City Assessor who shall prepare an assessment roll each year providing for assessment of the delinquent amounts against the respective properties served. The assessment shall include the amount of the delinquent account and the administrative charge ~~[due under Article VI of this chapter]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A, together with interest thereon at the maximum lawful rate. This assessment roll shall be delivered to the City Council for adoption on or before October 1 of each year. The provisions of § 11.07 of this chapter relating to the requirement, use and release of a security deposit shall apply to delinquent sewer accounts.

ARTICLE VI: FEES AND RATES FOR UTILITY SERVICES

§ 11.63 WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES.

These rates shall be implemented for bills generated on or [about] after January 1[, 2021] of each year, [~~or as soon as is practicable given~~] by the city’s billing system.

(a) Water rates for the city shall be [~~as follows:~~

- 1. ~~Tier One: \$4.13 per 1,000 gallons;~~
- 2. ~~Tier Two: \$7.29 per 1,000 gallons; and]~~
- 3. ~~Private hydrant rate: \$8.97 each]~~ as listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table.

(b) Wastewater rate for the city shall be [~~as follows:~~

- 1. ~~\$4.99 per 1,000 gallons]~~ as listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table.

§ 11.64 WATER INSTALLATION AND SERVICE.

(a) *Water rates and minimum charges.* The rates due and payable to the city by each owner within the city for water taken from the water supply system shall be as follows. These rates shall be implemented for bills generated on or [about] after January 1[, 2021] of each year, [~~or as soon as is practicable given~~] by the city’s billing system.

(b) *Private automatic fire sprinkler and hydrant connection charges.* When a connection is made to an automatic fire sprinkler system or to private hydrants, the charge for such service shall be as follows.

<i>Private Hydrant</i>		
<i>Hydrant Size</i>	<i>Billing Period</i>	<i>Charge per Billing</i>
All sizes	Monthly	As set in [§ 11.63 of this code] <u>City Code Appendix A – Waste Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table</u>

The rates set forth in [~~this subsection (b)~~] City Code Appendix A – Waste Water Rates and Wastewater Rates table shall apply in all cases where automatic fire sprinklers are installed and where fire gates and other outlets are sealed. No charge will be made for water use in extinguishing fire. Meters or detector check valves shall be installed on such services as required by the Utility Division.

(c) *Administrative assessment charge.* When a property being serviced is to be assessed for a delinquent water account, the administrative assessment charge is [~~\$50~~] listed in City Code Appendix A.

(d) *Charges for testing water meters.* The [following] charges listed in City Code Appendix A – Charges for Testing Water Meters table shall be collected if an owner or other account holder requests that the city conduct a test of the accuracy of a water meter[?].

For testing two-inch and smaller meters	\$10
For testing three-inch meters	\$15
For testing four-inch meters	\$25
For testing six-inch meters	\$35

(e) *Water disconnection and reconnection service charge.* For all accounts the charge for any dispatch for service under § 11.02 of this chapter shall be [~~\$50 during business hours~~] listed in City Code Appendix A. The rate for reconnection after business hours shall be two and one-half times the normal rate.

(f) *Permit fees for water connections.* The permit fee for a new or existing connection to the water system shall be as [~~follows:~~] listed in City Code Appendix A – Permit Fees for Water Connections table. Additional charges for labor may apply.

Water connection up to two inches	\$95
Water connection over two inches	\$257
Repair/alteration/disconnect	\$61
Fire service/hydrant (for each additional fire service/hydrant)	\$55

§ 11.64.01 FEES AND RATES FOR STORM WATER SERVICE.

(a) The permit fee for a new or existing connection to the sewer system shall be as [~~follows:~~] listed in City Code Appendix A – Permit Fees for Storm Sewer Connections table. The rates and charges for the use and availability of the storm sewer system are detailed in Chapter 16, Article IV § 16.15.

<i>Permit Fee for Storm Sewer Connections</i>	
Storm sewer connection	\$95
Repair/alteration/disconnect	\$61
Catch basin/manhole (for each additional structure)	\$25

§ 11.64.02 OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES.

Additional inspections necessitated by mistakes, corrections or violations attributable to the permittee or the permittee’s agents or assigns will result in an additional [~~\$30 service~~] charge listed in City Code Appendix A to the permittee for each such inspection. The rate for inspections requested to be made outside of normal business hours shall be two and one-half times the normal rate, with a minimum charge of two and one-half hours.

* * *

§ 11.65 WASTEWATER SERVICE.

* * *

(c) *Industrial and commercial property rates and minimum charges.* The wastewater rate for industrial and commercial properties shall be the wastewater rate as ~~[set forth in § 11.63 of this code]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Water Rates And Wastewater Rates table per 1,000 gallons, based upon the metered water usage with a minimum charge of the wastewater rate times 4,000 gallons per month. Owners must pay the total amount set forth in the bill on or before the due date listed on the bill. Failure to make payment by the due date listed on the bill will result in a late fee assessment of 5% of the total amount due and owing.

* * *

(f) *Permit fee for sewer connections.* The permit fee for a new or existing connection to the sewer system shall be as ~~[follows:]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Permit Fees For Sewer Connections table.

Sewer connection up to 4 inches	\$95
Sewer connection over 4 inches	\$257
Repair/alteration/disconnect	\$61
Manhole (for each additional structure)	\$25

§ 11.65.01 SOLID WASTE AND REFUSE COLLECTION FEES.

These rates shall be implemented for bills generated on or [about] after January 1 ~~[, 2021]~~ of each year, ~~[or as soon as is practicable given]~~ by the city’s billing system.

(a) Trash and recycling monthly rate schedule (all taxes and fees included) listed in City Code Appendix A – Trash and Recycling Monthly Collection Fees table.

<i>Cart Size</i>	Trash	Recycling	Total
Small	\$12.11	\$6.11	\$18.22
Medium	\$16.15	\$6.11	\$22.26
Large	\$20.18	\$6.11	\$26.29
Trash overflow	\$5.34 (on call per bag)		

(b) Bulky waste services (base collection and disposal services only; may be subject to taxes and fees, not included) ~~[:]~~ listed in City Code Appendix A – Bulky Waste Services table.

<i>Size</i>	<i>Weight</i>	<i>Amount of Metal</i>	<i>Example Items</i>	<i>Rate per Item</i>
Small items (without Freon)	Less than 50 pounds	n/a	Small furniture, lawn furniture, lawn mower, ottoman, small chair, bookcase, small table, small desk, wooden chair, end table	\$31.99
Small items (with Freon)	Less than 50 pounds	n/a	dehumidifier	\$31.99
Large appliances (without Freon)	More than 50 pounds	More than 50% metal	Stove, snow blower, hide-a-bed	\$53.32
Large appliances (with Freon)	More than 50 pounds	More than 50% metal	Refrigerator, freezer	\$53.32
Large furniture	More than 50 pounds	Less than 50% metal	Sofa, love seat, mattress, box-spring, reclining chair, wooden picnic table	\$53.32

(c) Electronic waste services (base collection and disposal services only; may be subject to taxes and fees, not included)[:] listed in City Code Appendix A – Electronic Waste Services table.

<i>Size</i>	<i>Weight</i>	<i>Screen or CRT Monitor</i>	<i>Example Items</i>	<i>Rate per Item</i>
Small items	Less than 20 pounds	No screen or monitor	Computer hard drive, keyboard, VCR, DVD	\$26.66
Large items	More than 20 pounds	With screen or monitor	Computer monitor, television	\$42.66

(d) Yard waste subscription service (annual cost per household per year, including collection and processing/composting costs)[:] listed in City Code Appendix A – Yard Waste Subscription Services table.

Full season Cart + limit of 20 bags each week	Monday of second full week in April through Friday of last full week in November	\$84.78
Partial, first season Cart + limit of 20 bags each week	August 1 through Friday of last full week in November.	\$53.06

On-call	Monday of second full week in April through Friday of last full week in November	\$4.26 per bag
Holiday Tree Collection	After January 1 each year for two full pick-up cycles commencing on the day after the New Year's holiday or the observed New Year's holiday	\$10.66 per tree
Holiday Tree Collection	Outside of the Holiday Tree Collection timeframe listed above	\$53.32 per tree

(e) City-wide Curbside Cleanup Program (billed bimonthly) [:] listed in City Code Appendix A – City-wide Curbside Cleanup Program table.

2024	\$4.42 per month (\$8.84 bimonthly)
------	-------------------------------------

(f) Solid Waste [€] cart exchanges [:] listed in City Code Appendix A – Solid Waste Cart Exchanges table.

<i>Type of Change</i>	<i>Unit Cost</i>
First change per calendar year	No cost
Additional changes in same calendar year	\$37.32 per trip
Second Yard Waste Cart Delivery	\$37.32 per trip
Damaged Cart Replacement	\$65.00 per cart

(g) Solid Waste e[E]xtra collection services [:] listed in City Code Appendix A – Solid Waste Extra Collection Services table.

<i>Type of Service</i>	<i>Unit Cost</i>
Trash	\$26.66 per trip
Recyclables	\$26.66 per trip
Bulky Waste	\$26.66 per trip
Electronic Waste	\$26.66 per trip
Yard Waste	\$26.66 per trip

(h) Solid Waste l[L]ate set out services [:] listed in City Code Appendix A – Solid Waste Late Set Out Services Table.

<i>Type of Service</i>	<i>Unit Cost</i>
Trash	\$10.66 per service
Recyclables	\$10.66 per service
Bulky Waste	\$10.66 per service
Electronic Waste	\$10.66 per service
Yard Waste	\$10.66 per service

* * *

Section 2. That the fees and charges deleted above shall be inserted, at the same dollar amounts, into Appendix A – Fee Schedule, as attached hereto and incorporated herein; and

Section 3. That the attached Appendix A – Fee Schedule is adopted and will be codified with the Bloomington City Code.

Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon publication.

Passed and adopted this 28th day of June, 2021.

/s/ Tim Busse
Mayor

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

/s/ Briana Eicheldinger
Secretary to the Council

/s/ Melissa J. Manderschied
City Attorney

APPENDIX A - FEE SCHEDULE

This appendix contains the various fees adopted by Ordinance in the listed section of the City Code.

CODE SECTION	CROSS-REF	DESCRIPTION	FEE
CHAPTER 1. INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE CITY CODE			
§1.19(d)		Administrative assessment charge for assessment of civil fines for property-related violations.	\$50.00
CHAPTER 2. ADMINISTRATION			
§2.85.05(e) (2)		Application fee for interpretation appeal.	\$420.00
CHAPTER 5: PUBLIC FACILITIES AND PROPERTY			
§5.18 (b)(1)		Transfer service charge for sale or conveyance of a lot or niche.	\$15.00
§5.18 (b)(2)		Sale or conveyance of lot or niche to City.	\$50.00 (or original price, whichever is greater)
CHAPTER 9: HOUSING OPPORTUNITY AND PRESERVATION			
§9.09(a)		Verified payment in lieu rate of affordable units.	\$9.60 per square foot
§9.11(c)		Affordable Housing Assistance for Developers.	\$10.00 per unit (but no more than \$1,000 total)
CHAPTER 10: ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL			
§10.17(d)		Delinquent accounts administrative assessment charge.	\$50.00
§10.40(b)		Administrative assessment charge for assessment of weeds and brush.	\$50.00
§10.40(c)		Inspection charge for weeds and brush.	\$100.00

CHAPTER 11: WATER, WASTEWATER, SOLID WASTE AND REFUSE UTILITY SERVICES

<u>§11.02(a)</u>		<u>Curb box connection permit.</u>	See PERMIT FEES FOR WATER CONNECTIONS table below at <u>§11.64(f)</u> .
<u>§11.02(c)</u>	<u>§11.14</u>	<u>Water disconnection and reconnection fee.</u>	Not less than \$50.00 (per task), or as established by Resolution The rate for reconnection of disconnected water service outside of normal business hours shall be two and one-half times the normal rate.
<u>§11.04(a)</u>		<u>Fees for curb box connection permits and water main tapping.</u>	See PERMIT FEES FOR WATER CONNECTIONS table below at <u>§11.64(f)</u> .
<u>§11.06(a)</u>		<u>Water rates.</u>	See WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table below at <u>§11.63(a) and (b)</u> .
<u>§11.06(d)</u>		<u>Water bills.</u>	See WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table below at <u>§11.63(a) and (b)</u> .
<u>§11.07(f)</u>	<u>§11.30</u> <u>§11.64(c)</u>	<u>Administrative Assessment Charge for delinquent account.</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>
<u>§11.07(h)</u>		<u>Reconnection of delinquent water accounts – deposit required.</u>	Minimum security deposit shall be \$50 with a maximum equal to the greater of two average consecutive city utility bills in the past 12 month period at the service address or \$250. The Utility Division may reduce Security Deposit to any reasonable amount not less than \$50.
<u>§11.14</u>		<u>Repair of leaks- reconnection charge.</u>	See Water disconnection and reconnection fee in <u>§11.02(c)</u> above.

<u>§11.17(d)(1)</u>		<u>Water Meters – Meter Accuracy Testing Deposit</u>	See CHARGES FOR TESTING WATER METERS table below at <u>§11.64(d)</u> .
<u>§11.17(d)(4)</u>		<u>Water Meters – Meter Accuracy Testing</u>	See CHARGES FOR TESTING WATER METERS table below at <u>§11.64(d)</u> .
<u>§11.23</u>		<u>Critical Water Deficiency</u>	Up to \$50.
<u>§11.26(a)</u>		<u>Wastewater connection permit fee.</u>	See PERMIT FEES FOR WATER CONNECTIONS table below at <u>§11.64(f)</u> .
<u>§11.29(a)</u>		<u>Monthly wastewater rates and charges.</u>	See WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table below at <u>§11.63(a) and (b)</u> .
<u>§11.29(b)(2)(A)</u>		<u>Single Family Residential Wastewater rates for non-peak months.</u>	During this time residents pay the actual metered water usage times the rate listed in WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table below at <u>§11.63(a) and (b)</u> .
<u>§11.29(b)(2)(B)</u>		<u>Single Family Residential Wastewater rates for peak months- “Winter Usage”</u>	During this time a resident’s billable amount shall be determined based upon the owner’s average use during non-peak months. The winter usage is multiplied by the wastewater rate in WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table below at <u>§11.63(a) and (b)</u> .
<u>§11.30</u>		<u>Delinquent Accounts – Administrative Assessment Charge.</u>	See 11.07(f) above.

<u>§11.63(a) and (b)</u>	<u>§11.06(a)</u>	<u>WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES</u>	
	<u>§11.06(d)</u> <u>§11.29(a)</u> <u>§11.29(b)(2)(A)</u> <u>§11.29(b)(2)(B)</u> <u>§11.64(b)</u> <u>§11.65(c)</u>	<p><u>(a) Water rates for the city shall be as follows:</u></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <u>1. Tier One: \$4.13 per 1,000 gallons;</u> <u>2. Tier Two: \$7.29 per 1,000 gallons; and</u> <u>3. Private hydrant rate: \$8.97 each.</u> <p><u>(b) Wastewater rate for the city shall be as follows:</u></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <u>1. \$4.99 per 1,000 gallons.</u> 	
<u>§11.64(b)</u>		<u>Private Hydrant charge.</u>	<u>See WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table at §11.63(a) and (b) above.</u>
<u>§11.64(c)</u>		<u>Delinquent Water Account administrative assessment charge.</u>	<u>See §11.07(f) above.</u>
<u>§11.64(d)</u>	<u>§11.17(d)(1)</u>	<u>CHARGES FOR TESTING WATER METERS</u>	
	<u>§11.17(d)(4)</u>	<u>For testing two-inch and smaller meters</u>	<u>\$10</u>
		<u>For testing three-inch meters</u>	<u>\$15</u>
		<u>For testing four-inch meters</u>	<u>\$25</u>
		<u>For testing six-inch meters</u>	<u>\$35</u>
<u>§11.64(e)</u>		<u>Water disconnection and reconnection service charge.</u>	<u>See §11.02(c) above.</u>

<u>§11.64(f)</u>	<u>§11.02(a)</u>	PERMIT FEES FOR WATER CONNECTIONS (additional labor fees required for City to tap water main)			
	<u>§11.04(a)</u>				
	<u>§11.26(a)</u>	<u>Water connection up to two inches</u>	<u>\$95</u>		
		<u>Water connection over two inches</u>	<u>\$257</u>		
		<u>Repair/alteration/disconnect</u>	<u>\$61</u>		
		<u>Fire service/hydrant (for each additional fire service/hydrant)</u>	<u>\$55</u>		
<u>§11.64.01(a)</u>		PERMIT FEE FOR STORM SEWER CONNECTIONS			
		<u>Storm sewer connection</u>	<u>\$95</u>		
		<u>Repair/alteration/disconnect</u>	<u>\$61</u>		
		<u>Catch basin/manhole (for each additional structure)</u>	<u>\$25</u>		
<u>§11.64.02</u>		<u>Other inspections and fees.</u>	\$30		
<u>§11.65(c)</u>		<u>Industrial and commercial property rates and minimum charges.</u>	See WATER RATES AND WASTEWATER RATES table above at §11.63(a) and (b) above.		
<u>§11.65(f)</u>	<u>§11.26(a)</u>	PERMIT FEE FOR SEWER CONNECTIONS			
		<u>Sewer connection up to 4 inches</u>	<u>\$95</u>		
		<u>Sewer connection over 4 inches</u>	<u>\$257</u>		
		<u>Repair/alteration/disconnect</u>	<u>\$61</u>		
		<u>Manhole (for each additional structure)</u>	<u>\$25</u>		
<u>§11.65.01(a)</u>		TRASH AND RECYCLING MONTHLY COLLECTION FEES (all taxes and fees included)			
		<u>Cart Size</u>	<u>Trash</u>	<u>Recycling</u>	<u>Total</u>
		<u>Small</u>	<u>\$12.11</u>	<u>\$6.11</u>	<u>\$18.22</u>
		<u>Medium</u>	<u>\$16.15</u>	<u>\$6.11</u>	<u>\$22.26</u>
		<u>Large</u>	<u>\$20.18</u>	<u>\$6.11</u>	<u>\$26.29</u>
		<u>Trash overflow</u>	<u>\$5.34 (on-call per bag)</u>		

§11.65.01(b)	BULKY WASTE SERVICES (base collection and disposal services only; may be subject to taxes and fees, not included)				
	<u>Size</u>	<u>Weight</u>	<u>Amount of Metal</u>	<u>Example Items</u>	<u>Rate per Item</u>
	Small items (without Freon)	Less than 50 pounds	n/a	Small furniture, lawn furniture, lawn mower, ottoman, small chair, bookcase, small table, small desk, wooden chair, end table	\$31.99
	Small items (with Freon)	Less than 50 pounds	n/a	dehumidifier	\$31.99
	Large appliances (without Freon)	More than 50 pounds	More than 50% metal	Stove, snow blower, hide-a-bed	\$53.32
	Large appliances (with Freon)	More than 50 pounds	More than 50% metal	Refrigerator, freezer	\$53.32
	Large furniture	More than 50 pounds	Less than 50% metal	Sofa, love seat, mattress, box-spring, reclining chair, wooden picnic table	\$53.32
§11.65.01(c)	ELECTRONIC WASTE SERVICES (base collection and disposal services only; may be subject to taxes and fees, not included)				
	<u>Size</u>	<u>Weight</u>	<u>Screen or CRT Monitor</u>	<u>Example Items</u>	<u>Rate per Item</u>
	Small items	Less than 20 pounds	No screen or monitor	Computer hard drive, keyboard, VCR, DVD	\$26.66
	Large items	More than 20 pounds	With screen or monitor	Computer monitor, television	\$42.66
§11.65.01(d)	YARD WASTE SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES (annual cost per household per year, including collection and processing/composting costs)				
	Full season Cart + limit of 20 bags each week		Monday of second full week in April through Friday of last full week of November	\$84.78	
	Partial, first season Cart + limit of 20 bags each week		August 1 through Friday of last full week in November	\$53.06	
	On-call		Monday of second full week in April through Friday of last full week in November	\$4.26 per bag	

		<u>Holiday Tree Collection</u>	<u>After January 1 each year for two full pick-up cycles commencing on the day after the New Year's holiday or the observed New Year's holiday</u>	<u>\$10.66 per tree</u>
		<u>Holiday Tree Collection</u>	<u>Outside of the Holiday Tree Collection timeframe listed above</u>	<u>\$53.32 per tree</u>

<u>§11.65.01(e)</u>	CITY-WIDE CURBSIDE CLEANUP PROGRAM (billed bimonthly)		
	<u>2021</u>	<u>\$4.42 per month (\$8.84 bimonthly)</u>	

<u>§11.65.01(f)</u>	SOLID WASTE CART EXCHANGES FEES	
	<u>Type of Change</u>	<u>Unit Cost</u>
	<u>First change per calendar year</u>	<u>No cost</u>
	<u>Additional changes in same calendar year</u>	<u>\$37.32 per trip</u>
	<u>Second Yard Waste Cart Delivery</u>	<u>\$37.32 per trip</u>
	<u>Damaged Cart Replacement</u>	<u>\$65.00 per cart</u>

<u>§11.65.01(g)</u>	SOLID WASTE EXTRA COLLECTION SERVICES FEES	
	<u>Type of Service</u>	<u>Unit Cost</u>
	<u>Trash</u>	<u>\$26.66 per trip</u>
	<u>Recyclables</u>	<u>\$26.66 per trip</u>
	<u>Bulky Waste</u>	<u>\$26.66 per trip</u>
	<u>Electronic Waste</u>	<u>\$26.66 per trip</u>
	<u>Yard Waste</u>	<u>\$26.66 per trip</u>

<u>§11.65.01(h)</u>	SOLID WASTE LATE SET OUT SERVICE FEES	
	<u>Type of Service</u>	<u>Unit Cost</u>
	<u>Trash</u>	<u>\$10.66 per service</u>
	<u>Recyclables</u>	<u>\$10.66 per service</u>
	<u>Bulky Waste</u>	<u>\$10.66 per service</u>
	<u>Electronic Waste</u>	<u>\$10.66 per service</u>
	<u>Yard Waste</u>	<u>\$10.66 per service</u>

CHAPTER 16: STORMWATER MANAGEMENT, STORM UTILITY, AND WETLANDS

<u>§16.11(b)(2)(E)</u>	Stormwater Aeration permit – Initial Application	\$150
<u>§16.11(d)</u>	Stormwater Aeration permit – Renewal	\$50